Aviation Committee Special Meeting
February 24, 2025

CITY OF NEWPORT BEACH Page 1
AVIATION COMMITTEE SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES

Monday, February 24, 2025 - 5:00 PM
OASIS Senior Center - 801 Narcissus Ave., Corona Del Mar, CA 92625

Aviation Committee Members:
Councilmember, Noah Blom, Chair
Councilmember Lauren Kleiman, Vice Chair

Jeffrey Cole - District 6 (excused)

Jeff Herdman - SPON Representative
Julie Johnson - CAANP Representative
Anthony Khoury - AWG Representative
Stephen Livingston - General Aviation
Hugh Logan - District 7

Sharon Ray - District 2

Ron Rubino - District 4

Jack Stranberg - Member At Large
Drew Teicheira - District 1

Cameron Verdi - District 5

Vacant - Newport Coast Representative
Vacant - District 3

Staff Members:
Tara Finnigan, Assistant City Manager
Jennifer Biddle, Executive Assistant to the City Manager
Errica Garrett, Administrative Assistant
Lorig Yaghsezian, Management Analyst

CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Chair Noah Blom called the meeting to order at 5:08 p.m.
ROLL CALL

Committee Member Jeffrey Cole had an excused absence.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Draft Minutes - July 15, 2024



https://newportbeach.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cac9e02e-5a51-4246-b2a1-b403085ec501.pdf

Aviation Committee Special Meeting
February 24, 2025

Page 2

A Motion was made by Committee Member Anthony Khoury, and was seconded by Committee Member
Hugh Logan, to approve the Draft Minutes for July 15, 2024. The motion carried unanimously.

Ayes: Herdman, Johnson, Khoury, Livingston, Logan, Ray, Stranberg, Teicheira, Kleiman,
Blom

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Cole (excused)

CURRENT BUSINESS

A. Presentations

1. John Wayne Airport Update - Orange County Supervisor Katrina Foley will provide
an update on County airport-related matters including a proposal regarding JSX
operations

Orange County Supervisor Katrina Foley reported that JetSuiteX, Inc. (JSX) has had a sublease
with Aviation Consultants, Inc. (ACI Jet) since 2018 as a Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Part
135 carrier at John Wayne Airport (JWA). She explained that the carrier’s operations are subject to
the Settlement Agreement and must comply with the curfew and annual passenger limits.

Supervisor Foley reported that due to the upcoming JWA general aviation improvement project,
JSX cannot remain at ACI Jet and alternative locations for JSX were considered. She advised that
the decommissioned air rescue and firefighting station was deemed not viable and that Gate 22
was also found to not be viable due to challenges related to Transportation Security Administration
(TSA) security screenings and commercial air carrier lease cancellations.

Supervisor Foley explained that Jay’s Aircraft Maintenance was open to having a tenant for
additional revenue. Jay’s is not at capacity and has space for two small aircraft without displacing
other airplanes. She noted this switch can be accomplished in time for the March 31 deadline for
JSX to leave ACI Jet and explained that a Through the Fence agreement with the County needed to
be reached and a security plan needed to be approved by TSA. Supervisor Foley said that a lease
amendment with Jay’s will come to the Board of Supervisors in March.

Supervisor Foley noted that eight small plane tie-downs will be lost by choosing the Jay’s option,
but four new tie-down locations have been identified and the search for four more locations
continues. She added that the Board of Supervisors on March 25 will also consider increasing the
JSX passenger allocation cap from 95,000 annually to 130,000.

In response to Committee Member Ray’s inquiry, Supervisor Foley clarified JSX will be leasing
office space at 3000 Airway Ave. in Costa Mesa.

In response to Committee Member Livingston’s inquiries, Supervisor Foley explained that this move
will help Jay’s with its hangar buildout through the additional income. She said that it will not reduce
the number of available hangars at Jay’s, only the number of tie-downs.

Committee Member Livingston raised the issue of tie-down pricing. Supervisor Foley reported she
discussed the matter with JWA Director Charlene Reynolds but the County is limited in what it can
do.



Aviation Committee Special Meeting
February 24, 2025

Page 3

Chair Blom commended Supervisor Foley’s work and thanked JSX for being one of the least-noisy
operators at John Wayne Airport.

Supervisor Foley remarked that diligent work is ongoing for noise reduction, acknowledging
Newport Beach and Costa Mesa endure the most of it. She reported that Ms. Reynolds has been
discussing equipment with carriers, requesting cleaner and quieter aircraft. She noted not all small
airplane pilots using JWA are from the area and are cognizant of the local issues, so they continue
to work with Fixed-Base Operators (FBO).

Supervisor Foley also reported that John Wayne Airport is spending hundreds of millions of dollars
to improve its facilities.

Chair Blom opened public comment.
Dennis Bress remarked that JSX is a model for noise reduction and commended their operations.

Jim Mosher noted JSX started as a charter service and has since transitioned to having some
scheduled flights. He inquired if they are still using this model and if all flights are thus counted in
the Fly Friendly model. He inquired if this proposed solution is only a temporary one as it relates to
existing agreements for airport expansion because Jay’s serving as a mini terminal does not mesh
into JWA'’s planned footprint.

William Holden inquired about the construction timeframe as it relates to JSX using Jay’s until
moving into a permanent home.

Supervisor Foley confirmed construction work is scheduled to start March 25.

Barbara Lichtman discussed how JSX operates under FAA Part 135, and FAA Part 380. She said
this takes advantage of a system designed for commercial air carriers and the agreement will
potentially lead to curfew violations under the guise of JSX flights operating as charters. She urged
caution.

Craig Ryan, representing the Southern California Pilots Association (SoCal Pilots), remarked that
they do not have any problem with JSX's relocation as long as it is only temporary. He explained
that a specific area at JWA was set aside for small general aviation and an acre of the land will be
lost in this proposal. He noted that there is an often-unmentioned 10-year waiting list for hangars,
leading many pilots to relocate their planes. He restated there would be an objection from him and
SoCal Pilots if this is not a temporary solution due to the lost acre.

Roberta Smith, a resident of the City of Irvine, expressed concerns there will be flights all night long.
Chair Blom closed public comments.

Supervisor Foley clarified that any permanent change to JSX’s location will require an
environmental analysis and review from a variety of agencies. She confirmed the Jay’s proposal is
temporary and agreed to continue to work on issues raised by the public speakers.

Chair Blom asked Ms. Lichman to provide a jet charters update.

Ms. Lichman commented that it is easier for jet charters to operate because they can do less than a

commercial carrier, and it is even easier for a scheduled charter to operate because they are
exempt from many regulations. She stressed the urgency of reconsideration of the impacts.



Aviation Committee Special Meeting
February 24, 2025

B. Oral Reports Page 4

1. Chair’'s Report - Chair Noah Blom will provide an update on the City’s aviation-
related activities, including a February 25 City Council agenda item recommending
the City Council form an ad hoc committee to review the structure, membership,
duties and responsibilities of the Aviation Committee.

Chair Blom reported Committee Members Verdi and Rubino have resigned, leaving the Committee
with four vacancies. He advised that even with the vacancies they remain a large committee by
Newport Beach standards so the committee’s structure and function will come to the City Council at
tomorrow’s meeting.

Chair Blom stated the committee’s work is important in representing Newport Beach'’s interests and
it needs to work efficiently. He reported Supervisor Foley has started her own committees and
brought Newport Beach residents into those committees. He applauded Ms. Reynolds's community
outreach work since she took over as Airport Director.

Chair Blom acknowledged that the City endures the most airport impacts from being under the
departure flight path, but that JWA is also County asset that brings economic benefits.

Assistant City Manager Tara Finnigan reported that the City is pushing back the Advanced Air
Mobility Community Forum 3-6 months to allow for the inclusion of new information from an
upcoming conference at the University of California at Davis.

2. Vice Chair's Report - Vice Chair Lauren Kleiman and Committee Member Jack
Stranberg will provide an update on their discussions with the air carriers and related
industry updates.

Vice Chair Lauren Kleiman reported meeting with representatives of the Ontario Airport Authority.
She noted that Ontario International Airport has available capacity and runways able to handle
international flights. Conversations will continue. She reported joining the Southern California
Association of Governments (SCAG) Transportation Committee. She announced that Alaska
Airlines has stated an interest in delivering more Boeing 737 MAX aircraft to JWA, but deliveries are
being delayed by a strike at Boeing Company. She also reported meeting with Spirit Airlines along
with Committee Member Jack Stranberg.

Committee Member Stranberg reported that he has been working with major carriers to increase
next-generation aircraft operations out of JWA, including MAX airplanes and New Engine Options
(NEO). He noted that American Airlines informed him they will be moving their MAX 8 operations
from the City of Miami, Florida to the City of Dallas, Texas. He advised that American is currently
operating 11 MAX 8 flights a day through JWA and will add two more in the spring. He reported
American also has more MAX airplanes on backorder and is attempting to add more NEOs.

Committee Member Stranberg reported that he and Vice Chair Kleiman thanked Spirit Airlines at
their meeting for the airline’s departure procedure of climbing to 4,000 feet before they reach the
Pacific Ocean. He reported Spirit agreed to continue this procedure. He remarked that Spirit came
out of bankruptcy four days ago with a plan to operate more NEOs, including flights through JWA.
He echoed Vice Chair Kleiman’s comments about Alaska Airlines’ goal of purchasing MAX
airplanes being hindered by production issues at Boeing.

Committee Member Stranberg reported having a three-hour meeting with Southwest Airlines,
JWA'’s largest carrier accounting for almost one-third of all JWA flights. He reported that Southwest



Aviation Committee Special Meeting
February 24, 2025

Page 5

has a team wanting to work with Ms. Reynolds and Nick Anas, Chief of Staff to Supervisor Foley.
He noted that in 2023 they encouraged Southwest to use MAX aircraft for their first four departures
in the morning, and this has been successful for noise reduction. He said Southwest is now
committing to having its first 24 daily departures from JWA be on MAX 8s with 63% of all
departures at JWA being on those quieter planes. He reported they continue to stress pilot-only
takeoffs from JWA where pilots must focus more closely on altitude, airspeed and banking. He
advised that Southwest’s pilot training includes a section on the uniqueness of JWA to benefit those
who do not regularly fly to Orange County. He reported United Airlines is also increasing its MAX 8
fleet and attempting to support JWA'’s next-generation strategy.

Committee Member Stranberg thanked Ms. Reynolds and Mr. Anas for their critical roles in these
discussions with the major airlines. He reported that the result of these efforts is an increase from
28% departures on next-generation aircraft to 37% since August 2024. He advised that the MAX 7
is expected to be certified by the FAA later this year and will likely replace many of Southwest’s
older and louder Boeing 737-700 aircraft, noting this could conceivably bring JWA’s percentage of
next-generation flights to over 60% within a year.

3. Federal Legislative Update - Zac Commins, Carpi & Clay, will provide an update
on the federal advocacy activities the consultant is working on for the City

Carpi & Clay Inc. Principal Zac Commins reported former Wisconsin Congressman Sean Duffy has
been confirmed as the new Secretary of Transportation with bipartisan support. He reported FAA
Administrator Mike Whitaker resigned and they are awaiting a nominee for this position while FAA
veteran Chris Rocheleau holds this position as an Acting Administrator. He noted Carpi & Clay has
been monitoring the aftermath of several recent air incidents, including the recent crash at Ronald
Reagan National Airport in Washington, D.C. He reported President Donald Trump and Senator
Ted Cruz have expressed interest in advancing aviation safety legislation. He added the full
congressional report on Advanced Air Mobility has not yet been issued.

Mr. Commins reported they are also following the 2024 FAA Reauthorization Act and its
implementation, including areas such as the Community Collaboration Program. He reported the
current continuing resolution keeping the federal government open expires on March 14 and
impacts many things, including implementation of a Senate bill directing the FAA to engage with
local communities about Advanced Air Mobility aircraft and infrastructure. He noted the President’s
budget requests have not yet been released but added it is common to have not yet received it at
this point in a Presidential transition year. He advised that Carpi and Clay lobbyists have been
regularly engaging with Newport Beach’s Congressional delegation on the City’s federal aviation
priorities, including attending the swearing-in ceremony for Congressman Dave Min. He reported
they have also met with staff from the offices of Senators Alex Padilla and Adam Schiff.

Chair Blom commended Mr. Commins’ regular updates to the Committee and his federal lobbying
efforts.

Ms. Finnigan noted some of Congressman Min’s senior staff followed him after his tenure as a
State Senator and is aware of Newport Beach’s local issues.



Aviation Committee Special Meeting
February 24, 2025

Page 6
4. UC Davis Aviation Noise & Emissions Symposium Update - Assistant City Manager

Tara Finnigan will discuss the planning efforts for this year’s symposium, scheduled
for March 10-12 and the opportunity for 1-2 committee members to participate in the
conference virtually.

Ms. Finnigan reported the UC Davis Aviation Noise & Emissions Symposium will be held March 10-
12. She is again on the event’s Planning Committee and advised that she is particularly looking
forward to a panel discussing what cities and counties can do to prepare for the implementation of
Advanced Air Mobility. She commented that she would contact the Aviation Committee members to
see if they are interested in participating in the conference virtually.

In response to Committee Member Ray’s inquiry, Chair Blom stated, while he cannot say
definitively, the City Council Ad Hoc Subcommittee looking at the Aviation Committee’s structure
may also assess the Committee’s focus and purpose. He noted that it is important that the City’s
Committees are commensurate with its goals, including working with the County and JWA. He
explained that the committee could narrow its focus with a top goal of ensuring the Settlement
Agreement holds, plus continued successful progress on its current efforts, and maintaining strong
partner relations.

Committee Member Ray agreed with this assessment. She encouraged the committee to continue
its educational endeavors, receive updates on the upcoming construction at JWA, and be involved
in the public relations efforts around JWA.

Chair Blom agreed with these suggestions. He encouraged Committee Member Ray to make
comments like these at tomorrow’s City Council meeting as well. He noted that the City Council
needs this sort of input.

Committee Member Herdman explained that City Council Policy A-17 was written to assist the City
in working with the public on airport issues and concerns. He encouraged Chair Blom to not lose
sight of this policy in the Ad Hoc Committee’s work because it is important to residents. He cited the
Harbor, Planning and Civic Arts Commissions as examples of Newport Beach Commissions
chaired by a Committee Member selected through a nomination process and serving for a two-year
term. He encouraged the Ad Hoc Committee to consider this structure.

Committee Member Khoury remarked that the most important airport issue to most Newport Beach
residents is noise from the airplanes.

In response to an inquiry by Committee Member Khoury, Ms. Reynolds clarified 3000 Airway Ave.
where JSX will make its temporary offices is an existing commercial building JWA has no financial
interest in. She explained that the building is privately owned, and JSX will be a temporary tenant

with a lease in the range of 18-24 months. She confirmed that purchasing this parcel of land is not
in either JWA'’s current or its future plans.



VL.

VILI.

Aviation Committee Special Meeting
February 24, 2025

Page 7
Chair Blom agreed with Committee Member Herdman’s comments but noted the Aviation ?
Committee is not a Charter committee. It was formed by the City to help address concerns raised
by the community. He advised that the City Council will assess the committee’s goals and what it is
trying to accomplish. He noted the top goal of preserving the Settlement Agreement.

Chair Blom opened public comment.

Mr. Bress thanked Vice Chair Kleiman for her work in the City of Ontario. He stated he is on
Supervisor Foley’s Airport Working Group and applauded the teamwork. He noted that the County
owns JWA and the City receives benefits. He remarked that the County is nearing the limits outlined
in the Settlement Agreement. He noted he has always advocated for a relationship with Ontario
International Airport with its two 10,000-foot runways and capacity to grow. He advised that
connecting the Anaheim Regional Transport Intermodal Center (ARTIC) to Ontario International
Airport would benefit traffic-weary Orange County residents. He commended Committee Member
Stranberg and added the Next Generation percentage when he started his work was just 8% having
now increased it to 37% by building regional partnerships. He commended Spirit Airlines’ departure
parameters. He thanked Mr. Commins for his federal lobbying work. He stressed that the Aviation
Committee is a vital piece for the Newport Beach community and thanked the Committee Members
for their time and efforts.

Alan Gunther, a Balboa Peninsula resident, encouraged the City to work with the County and FAA
to encourage nighttime departures to go to the north, weather permitting, sending planes over the
industrial area rather than a residential area.

Orange County Airport Commission Vice Chair Sue Dvorak remarked that the committee is
important and the City would not have the active participation of County leaders without it. She
remarked that past Ad Hoc Subcommittees have led to improvements and cited examples of the
good work the committee can produce when structured properly. She expressed support for
restructuring and expressed hope that the City Council will keep its past success in mind and not
overlook the valuable things committee members can bring to the City Council and City.

Chair Blom expressed agreement with Ms. Dvorak. He reiterated that the City Council is only trying
to make the committee more efficient and not eliminate it.

Chair Blom closed public comment.

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

Ms. Smith remarked that this is the first time she has been aware of this committee and its public
meetings. She reported the airplanes do not go over her home, but she can hear them. She encouraged
reenacting the curfew, reporting she and many neighbors were awakened by an airplane at 4:30 a.m. this
morning.

Chair Blom confirmed that the curfew is in effect for all commercial flights.

Richard (last name not provided) reported that he has lived under the flight paths for 50 years and
commended the work of the committee at greatly reducing noise.

NEXT MEETING - April 21, 2025

Chair Blom set the next meeting for April 21, but noted structural changes to the committee could
potentially impact how frequently it meets in the future.

ADJOURNMENT




Aviation Committee Special Meeting
February 24, 2025

Page 8
Chair Blom adjourned the meeting at 6:30 p.m.



